Minutes of Planning and Development Committee

Meeting Date:Thursday, 30 November 2017 starting at 6.30pmPresent:Councillor A Brown (Chairman)

Councillors:

S Atkinson	J Rogerson
I Brown	I Sayers
S Brunskill	R Sherras
M French	R Swarbrick
G Geldard	D Taylor
S Hind	N Walsh
S Knox	

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Head of Planning Services, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Head of Regeneration and Housing, Principal Planning Officer and Countryside Officer.

Also in attendance: Councillor G Scott (from 6.55pm).

450 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillor P Dowson.

451 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2017 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

452 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST

Councillor S Atkinson declared an interest in planning application 3/2017/0889 and Councillor J Rogerson declared an interest in planning applications 3/2017/0357 and 3/20170957.

453 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Chairman welcomed Mr Lumb, Mr Wright and Mr Bunyon who spoke on agenda item No 6 – Bolton by Bowland Neighbourhood Plan. She also welcomed the Reverend Froud who spoke on agenda item No 7 – Tree Preservation Order at St Mary's Centre, Clitheroe.

The Chairman also informed Members that parts of the Committee were being recorded by a member of the public.

- 454 PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990:
 - 1. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0184 GRID REF: SD 374353 441579

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

ERECTION OF 10 DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT LAND OFF WILKIN SQUARE, CLITHEROE.

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun no later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

15.63/PL01 Rev: A - Proposed Site Plan 15.63/PL02 Rev: A - Proposed Floor Plans 15.63/PL03 Rev: A - Proposed Elevations 15.63/PL04 Rev: A – Proposed Sections

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including surfacing materials including details of the glazing and windows/door framing of the development hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to protect the character and appearance of the defined Conservation Area in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of the proposed boundary treatments/fencing, walling and any retaining walls shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to protect the character and appearance of the defined Conservation Area in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through the site including details of the height and scale and location of the proposed housing in relation to adjacent existing development/built form (where applicable). The details shall clearly show the eaves and ridge heights of the proposed building/dwelling(s) relative to the eaves and ridge heights of existing neighbouring development/built form. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the proposal responds positively to the topography of the site and to ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to protect the character and appearance of the defined Conservation Area in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Prior to the commencement of development a noise survey/assessment ensuring that the rating level of noise emanated from uses adjoining the site will not have an undue or detrimental impact on the residential amenities of future occupiers of the development shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment shall have been made in accordance with the current version of British Standard 4142 and the Planning Practice Guidance.

Should the assessment indicate that noise from uses adjacent the site is likely to adversely affect the residential amenities of future occupiers then the submitted information shall also be accompanied by a detailed scheme or precise details of any sound mitigation/attenuation measures that are required or recommended by the findings of the assessment/survey.

The approved sound mitigation/attenuation measures shall be implemented as part of the construction of the dwellings in strict accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation and thereafter retained. Thereafter a verification report, that demonstrates the approved details have been installed as agreed, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Authority. REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the activities associated with the proposal are appropriate to the locality and to protect the residential amenities of nearby residents/occupiers in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall indicate, as appropriate, the types and numbers of trees and shrubs, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, turfed, paved or hard landscaped, including details of any changes of level or landform and the types and specifications of all retaining structures (where applicable).

The approved soft landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing, whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. No development shall commence until details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Evidence of approval from United Utilities of permission to connect surface water drainage in to the 300mm diameter public United Utilities combined sewer within Highfield Rd, as stated in section 6.3.6 of the FRA, at the approved discharge rate.
- b) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details. REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure that there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. No development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the sustainable drainage scheme for the site has been completed in accordance with the submitted details. The sustainable drainage scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the agreed management and maintenance plan.

REASON: To ensure that the drainage for the proposed development can be adequately maintained and to ensure that there is no flood risk on- or off-the site resulting from the proposed development or resulting from inadequate the maintenance of the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 10. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
 - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development, to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (Ref: 2016-128 dated 30th January 2017) and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:

- a) Finished floor levels are set no lower than 75.8m above Ordnance Datum (mAOD)
- Flood storage compensation of 13.25 cubic metres to be provided on site, details of which shall be provided prior to commencement of development.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with the principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref No. 2016-128, dated 30/01/17) which was prepared by FRC Ltd. No surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the public sewer.

Any variation to the discharge of foul shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. The parking areas hereby approved shall be surfaced and marked out in accordance with a scheme that shall first have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed parking scheme shall be implemented and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate parking provision is provided on site and to ensure the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to protect the character and appearance of the defined Conservation Area in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMG3 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. Notwithstanding the submitted details, details of proposed cycle storage provision shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of development. For the avoidance of doubt all proposed cycle storage shall be enclosed and lockable.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and the approved details shall be made available for use prior to first occupation of the dwellings(s) hereby approved and shall be retained for use at all times thereafter.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the development provides adequate provision that encourages the use of sustainable means of transport in accordance with Key Statement DMI1 and Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order, the dwellings hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted, no alterations to the roof shall be undertaken and no buildings or structures shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby approved unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the immediate area in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Mr Stanton spoke in favour of the above application. Mr Wallis spoke against the above application).

2. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0351 GRID REF: SD 377818 447230

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS FOR 14 HOUSES, 3 BUNGALOWS AND A NEW ACCESS ROAD INCLUDING APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING AND LAYOUT, FOLLOWING OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION 3/2013/0440. LAND TO THE REAR OF PENDLE STREET EAST, SABDEN.

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

 Precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including surfacing materials including details of the window/door framing of the development hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to their installation, elevational details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of the proposed boundary treatments/fencing, walling and any retaining walls, including their location, shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall also include the precise nature of the bollards to be erected within the site adjacent Bridleway 16. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through the site including details of the height and scale and location of the proposed housing in relation to adjacent existing development/built form (where applicable). The details shall clearly show the eaves and ridge heights of the proposed building/dwelling(s) relative to the eaves and ridge heights of existing neighbouring development/built form. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the proposal responds positively to the topography of the site and to ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. The windows in the rear (east) elevation of the dwelling indicated as Plot 01 (Site Plan - Drg No. 19 Revision A) hereby approved shall be fitted with obscure glazing (which shall have an obscurity rating of not less than 4 on the Pilkington glass obscurity rating or equivalent scale) and shall be non-opening, unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed. The windows shall remain in that manner in perpetuity at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To protect nearby residential amenity and to negate the potential impacts of the development in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme for the soft landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall indicate, as appropriate, the types and numbers of trees and shrubs, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, turfed, paved or hard landscaped, including details of any changes of level or landform and the types and specifications of all retaining structures (where applicable).

The approved soft landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development unless otherwise agreed whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. The entirety of the parking areas and driveways hereby approved shall be surfaced and marked out in accordance with a scheme that shall first have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the agreed dedicated parking provision for 27 and 29 Pendle Street East (Site Plan - Drg No. 19 revision A) shall be implemented and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and thereafter retained for use by numbers 27 and 29 Pendle Street east in perpetuity.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate dedicated parking provision is provided on site to serve the dwellings hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. The refuse storage areas hereby approved shall be constructed and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings to which they

are associated. The refuse storage provision shall be retained as such in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate dedicated refuse storage provision is provided on site to serve the dwellings hereby approved in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes / artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall take account of the enhancement recommendations contained with the previously approved Ecological Phase 01 Survey Report (October 2012) and any subsequent recommendations made within any revised documentation submitted pursuant to condition 11 of outline consent 3/2013/0440. The submitted details shall identify the nature and type of the nesting boxes/artificial roosting sites and the locations(s) or wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into the dwellings hereby approved during the construction stage of the development and made available for use prior to first occupation and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and to minimise/mitigate the potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site unless and until a revised tree and hedgerow survey/arboricultural impact assessment has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority including details for the protective fencing of affected trees/hedgerow (where applicable).

Any specified tree/hedgerow protection measures shall remain in place throughout the construction phase of the development and the methodology approved shall be adhered to during all site preparation/construction works.

REASON: To ensure the adequate protection of trees/hedging of landscape and visual amenity value on and adjacent to the site or those likely to be affected by the proposed development in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy. 11. No development shall commence until details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- A. Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
- B. The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the surface water run-off must not exceed the pre-development greenfield runoff rate which has been calculated at 5 litres per second. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- C. Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- D. Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- E. A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- F. Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure that there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:

- A. The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
- B. Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
- C. Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development, to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. No development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the sustainable drainage scheme for the site has been completed in accordance with the submitted details. The sustainable drainage scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the agreed management and maintenance plan.

REASON: To ensure that the drainage for the proposed development can be adequately maintained and to ensure that there is no flood risk on- or off-the site resulting from the proposed development or resulting from inadequate the maintenance of the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy

14. The garage(s) hereby approved shall be kept available for the parking of vehicles ancillary to the enjoyment of the household(s) and shall not be used for any use that would preclude the ability for their use for the parking of private motor vehicles, whether or not permitted by the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or any order amending or revoking and re-enacting that order.

REASON: To ensure to ensure that adequate parking provision is retained on site that limits the visual impact of the parked motor-vehicle upon the street scene/area in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order, the dwellings hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted, no alterations to the roof shall be undertaken and no buildings or structures shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby approved unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the immediate area in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN5 and Policies DMG1 and DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Councillor Rogerson declared an interest in the next item and left the meeting)

3. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0357 GRID REF: SD 361065 436542

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

CONSTRUCTION OF TEN, TWO-STOREY HOLIDAY COTTAGES, INCLUDING ASSOCIATED PARKING AND ACCESS, LANDSCAPING AND ASSOCIATED WORKS, IN CONNECTION WITH EXISTING HOLIDAY PARK AND LOWER MOSS FARM, LOWER LANE, LONGRIDGE

The Head of Planning Services informed Committee of an update on the drainage condition.

APPROVED subject to the imposition of the following condition(s):

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

RAI/10/Dwg 01 RAI/10/Dwg 02 RAI/10/Dwg 03 RAI/10/Dwg 04 6201 01-01 (amended plan received 29/09/17)

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

Materials

3. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application and the requirements of condition 2 of this permission, samples or full details of all materials to be used on the external surfaces of the holiday units hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their use on site. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials. The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the duly approved materials.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN2, and Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Use of units

4. Notwithstanding the provisions The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Order 2015, or any equivalent Order following the revocation and re-enactment thereof (with or without modification), the holiday cottages hereby approved shall only be used as holiday accommodation and for no other purpose, including any other purpose within Use Class C3.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt, and to avoid an over-intensive use and to ensure that the development remains compatible with the character of the area and the intensity and frequency of usage remains proportionate to the use hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME2, DMB1 and DMB3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. The holiday cottages hereby approved shall not be used as a unit of permanent accommodation or any individual(s) sole place of residence. A register of all occupants/owners of the holiday cottages hereby approved shall be maintained at all times and shall be made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request. For the avoidance of doubt the register shall contain the name and address of the principal occupier/owner(s) together with all dates of occupation.

REASON: To ensure that the development remains compatible with the character of the area and the intensity and frequency of usage remains proportionate to the use hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME2, DMB1 and DMB3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A to H of Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order, the holiday cottages hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted (including rooflights) and no additional buildings or structures shall be erected within its external area unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority. REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the development and locality and the amenities of nearby residents in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policies DMG1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Highways

7. The car parking and manoeuvring areas (as shown on approved drawing RAI/10 Dwg 02) shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan before any of the holiday cottages hereby approved are first brought into use and shall be permanently maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

8. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

Amenity

9. No external lighting shall be installed on any structure hereby approved, or elsewhere within the site, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Details of any such lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation. Only the duly approved lighting shall be installed on the buildings hereby approved.

REASON: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity and to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Landscape and Ecology

11. No clearance of any vegetation in preparation for or during the course of development shall take place during the bird breeding season (March - August inclusive) unless an ecological survey has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the vegetation to be cleared is not utilised for bird nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no clearance of any vegetation shall take place during the bird breeding season until a methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved methodology.

REASON: In order to prevent any habitat disturbance to nesting birds in accordance with the requirements of Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policy DME3 and the provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the National Planning Policy Framework.

12. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans and the requirements of condition 2 of this permission, within three months of development first taking place a landscaping scheme for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include details of the type, species, siting, planting distances and programme of planting of any trees, shrubs, hedges and other soft landscaped areas. The duly approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out within the first planting season after any holiday cottage hereby approved becomes operative and the areas which are landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. Any trees, shrubs, hedges or areas of soft landscaping removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

REASON: In order to achieve a satisfactory level of landscaping in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. No development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes / artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall identify the nature and type of the nesting boxes/artificial roosting sites and the locations(s) or wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall made available for use before the holiday cottages hereby approved are first brought into use and thereafter retained.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Drainage

14. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: In order to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

15. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

16. No development shall commence until final details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;

- b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the surface water run-off must not exceed the pre-development greenfield run-off rate which has yet to be agreed. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- c) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing watercourses (open or culverted) and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include a site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates. If infiltration is shown to be a viable option for the disposal of surface water, then this should then be used as the primary method for disposing of surface water from the site. Disposal via an ordinary watercourse will only be considered where infiltration is proved to be unsuitable.
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 17. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
 - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development. To reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. No development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until the sustainable drainage scheme for the site has been completed in accordance with the submitted details. The sustainable drainage scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the agreed management and maintenance plan.

REASON: To ensure that the drainage for the proposed development can be adequately maintained and that there is no flood risk on- or off-the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

INFORMATIVE:

The proposals indicate that the applicant intends to discharge surface water into the open watercourse at the west side of the development site.

Under the Land Drainage Act 1991 (as amended by the Flood & Water Management Act 2010), you need consent from the Lead Local Flood Authority if you want to build a culvert or structure (such as a weir) or carry out works within the banks of any ordinary watercourse which may alter or impede the flow of water, regardless of whether the watercourse is culverted or not.

As a minimum, the applicant will be expected to:

Carry out studies of the existing culvert/watercourse condition and capacity;

Undertake an examination of the downstream condition and implications of the development proposal, and;

Restrict discharge rates so that the peak runoff rate from the development to the ordinary watercourse for the 1 in 1 year rainfall event and the 1 in 100 year rainfall event should never exceed the peak greenfield runoff rate for the same event.

As per Lancashire County Council Consenting and Enforcement Policy, it should be noted that the Lead Local Flood Authority will generally refuse consent for applications which seek to culvert an existing ordinary watercourse. This is in line with Environment Agency guidance on protecting watercourses: <u>http://evidence.environment-</u> agency.gov.uk/FCERM/en/FluvialDesignGuide/Chapter8.aspx?pagenum=6

(Councillor Rogerson returned to the meeting)

4. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0602/P GRID REF: SD 361561 437175

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR INDUSTRIAL UNITS (USE CLASSES B1, B2, B8) AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND SERVICES INFRASTRUCTURE WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT ACCESS AND CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE TO OFFICE (B1) AT HIGHER COLLEGE FARM, LOWER ROAD, HOTHERSALL PR3 2YY

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Application(s) for approval of all of the outstanding reserved matters related to the consent hereby approved must be made not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission and the development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following dates.
 - (a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or
 - (b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Detailed plans indicating the layout, scale and appearance of the buildings, facing materials, landscaping and boundary treatment and parking and manoeuvring arrangements for vehicles (called the "reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before development commences.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority should be satisfied as to the details and because the application was made for outline planning permission and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

3. The permission shall relate to the development as shown on Plan Drawing 5296-01A.

REASON: To clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

4. No single unit of B1(c), B2 or B8 accommodation hereby approved shall have a ground floor area of more than 200m² and, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, no internal alterations involving the removal of walls between these individual units shall be carried out which would enlarge them so that any single unit has a ground floor area of more than 200m² unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To prevent a proliferation of over large units in this area and to ensure that the access provided to the site can accommodate the traffic generated by the development and in accordance with Policy DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, no extensions or alterations, including the introduction of mezzanine floors, shall be carried out in respect of the buildings to which this permission relates.

REASON: To prevent an intensification in the use of the premises, in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of local residents within the Borough in accordance with Key Statements EC1 and EN2 and Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by a noise assessment to ensure that the rating level of noise emitted from the site shall not have an impact on noise-sensitive premises. The assessment shall have been made in accordance with the current version of British Standard 4142 and the Planning Practice Guidance and confirmation of the findings of the assessment shall have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and shall be adhered to thereafter.

If the assessment indicates that noise from the development is likely to affect neighbouring residential or commercial properties then a detailed scheme of noise mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the unit.

The noise mitigation measures shall be designed so that nuisance will not be caused to the occupiers of neighbouring noise sensitive premises by noise from the development.

REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area by reason of undue noise emission and/or unacceptable disturbance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours

Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. No part of the development hereby granted consent shall be commenced until details of all artificial lighting has been submitted, the details of which shall include the location, intensity of lighting, type of application and direction.

The details shall include the light mitigation measures designed to reduce the impact of artificial lighting on protected species and species of conservation concern.

The external lighting shall be installed precisely in accordance with the approved details and thereby retained as such unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to reduce the harmful impact of artificial lighting on the natural foraging/roosting/nesting behaviour of a protected species and species of conservation concern and to minimise the possibility of inconvenience to nearby residents in compliance with Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

9. The working hours within the premises shall be restricted to the period from 0800 to 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays only. No work shall take place in the buildings on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the adjacent properties and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

10. No externally sited fixed plant, machinery or equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment); or internally sited fixed plant, machinery and equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment) which communicates directly to the exterior of a building used in connection with the development shall be fitted without first obtaining planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area due to noise from such equipment, in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. No goods, plant or materials shall be deposited or stored on the site other than in the buildings shown on the approved plans.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. There shall not at anytime whatsoever be any working outside of the buildings, or any noise generating work inside the buildings with the doors open.

REASON: In the interest of safeguarding residential amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Proposed Main Modifications (May 2014).

13. There shall be no deliveries or collections to/from the new units hereby approved other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenity of the surrounding area and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

14. There shall be no movements of HGV's or forklift trucks, used in connection with the new units hereby approved, within the open areas of the site other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. No goods, plant or material shall be displayed for sale in the open on the site.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 16. As part of any reserved matters application and prior to the commencement of any development the following details shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority.
 - a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
 - b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the surface water run-off must not exceed the pre-development greenfield runoff rate. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
 - c) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include

refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);

- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates;
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained, that there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development and that water quality is not detrimentally impacted by the development proposal in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policy DME6.

- 17. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
 - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development; to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and; to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system.

18. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref No. BEK-17203-1 RevA, Dated August 2017) which was prepared by BEK. No surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the public sewer. Any variation to the discharge of foul shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development and no building shall be occupied until the approved foul drainage scheme has been completed to serve the buildings, in accordance with the approved details. This development shall be completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. Surface water draining from areas of hardstanding shall be passed through an oil interceptor or series of oil interceptors, prior to being discharged into any watercourse, soakaway or surface water sewer. The interceptor(s) shall be designed and constructed to have a capacity compatible with the area being drained, shall be installed prior to the occupation of the development and shall thereafter be retained and maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. Clean roof water shall not pass through the interceptor(s). Vehicle washdowns and detergents shall not be passed through the interceptor.

REASON: To reduce the risk of pollution to the water environment and in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Core Strategy.

20. As part of any reserved matters application and prior to the commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services, a detailed arboricultural assessment/tree constraints plan shall indicate how the existing trees have informed the detailed layout that has been submitted for reserved matters approval.

REASON: In order to ensure that any trees affected by development and considered to be of visual, historic or botanical value are afforded maximum physical protection from the potential adverse effects of development.

21. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of the landscaping of the site, including wherever possible the retention of existing trees. The scheme shall reflect the landscape character of the area and therefore indicate on a detailed planting schedule appropriate species, types and density as well as their distribution on site.

The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development, whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

REASON: To comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

22. The biodiversity mitigation measures as detailed in the ecological appraisal dated the 20 June 2017 [Sections 7.1 – 7.8.2] shall be implemented in accordance with the recommendations and any specified time table. The development shall subsequently be implemented entirely in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the mitigation measures shall be permanently maintained and retained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To protect the protected species/ species of conservation concern from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development and to ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable status of a bat population before and during the proposed development.

23. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of the numbers [there shall be at least 1 nest brick/bat tile per unit] across the development as a whole on north or east facing elevations. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into those individual units during the construction of those individual units identified on the submitted plan and be made available for use before each such building is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

24. The actions, methods & timing details included in the mitigation notes attached to the protected species survey dated 1 June 2017 shall be adhered to and in the event that any bats are found or disturbed during any part of the development, work shall cease until further advice has been sought from a licensed ecologist.

REASON: To protect the bat population from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development and to ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable status of a bat population before and during the proposed development. 25. The layout of the development shall include provisions to enable vehicles to enter and leave the highway in forward gear and such provisions shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan and the vehicular turning space shall be laid out and be available for use before the development is brought into use and maintained thereafter.

REASON: Vehicles reversing to and from the highway are a hazard to other road users.

26. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 there shall not at any time in connection with the development hereby permitted be erected or planted or allowed to remain upon the land hereinafter defined any building, wall, fence, hedge, tree, shrub or other device over 1m above road level. The visibility splay to be the subject of this condition shall be that land in front of a line drawn from a point 2.4m measured along the centre line of the proposed road from the continuation of the nearer edge of the carriageway of Blackburn Road to points measured 120m in each direction along the nearer edge of the access, and shall be maintained at footway/verge level in accordance with a scheme to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority in conjunction with the Highway Authority').

REASON: To ensure adequate visibility at the street junction or site access.

- 27. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the anticipated highway works shall include;
 - a) Provision of pedestrian refuge and localised carriageway widening
 - b) Signing and lining
 - c) Junction realignment at the Blackburn Road, Lower Lane, Preston Road junction
 - d) Provision of a footway on the south side of Blackburn Road from the proposed pedestrian refuge to Woodville cottages
 - e) Advertising and implementation of a 40mph speed limit on Blackburn Road from the current 30mph terminal point in an easterly direction

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site.

28. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied or opened for trading until the approved scheme referred to in Condition 27 has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme details.

REASON: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the highway scheme/works.

29. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

30. The car park shall be surfaced or paved in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Local Planning Authority and the car parking spaces and manoeuvring areas shall be marked out in accordance with the approved plan before the use of the premises hereby permitted becomes operative.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas.

31. Cycling facilities shall be provided in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Local Planning Authority and the cycling facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved plan before the use of the premises hereby permitted becomes operative.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas.

32. Motorbike facilities shall be provided in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Local Planning Authority and the motorbike facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved plan, before the use of the premises hereby permitted becomes operative.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas.

33. The new estate road/access between the site and Blackburn Road shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level before any development takes place within the site.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

- 34. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide for:
 - a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
 - b) The loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - c) The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
 - d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding
 - e) Details of working hours
 - f) HGV delivery times and routeing to/from the site
 - g) Contact details for the site manager

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

INFORMATIVES

- 1. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Section 6780. Support on 0300 123 or email Ihscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt, this permission does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and, once planning permission has been obtained, it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given.

The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council **before** starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found here: <u>http://new.lancashire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-</u> <u>travel/roads/flooding/alterations-to-a-watercourse.aspx</u>

(Mrs Douglas spoke in favour of the above application. Dr Forrester on behalf of Hothersall Parish Council spoke against the above application). APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0610 GRID REF: SD 374602 441669

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

5.

CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING RVBC CAR PARK TO FORM EXTENSION TO EXISTING LIDL FOOD STORE INCLUDING 9 STAFF CAR PARKING PLACES AT LIDL, SHAWBRIDGE STREET, CLITHEROE

The Head of Planning Services reported a late item from the applicant.

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the requirements of section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Location Plan – AD 100 Proposed Site Plan – AD 110 Proposed Elevations – AD 113 – Rev A Proposed Building Plan – AD 111 – Rev A Landscape Details – R/1989/1 Proposed Boundary Treatments – AD 114 Proposed Lighting Layout – 0400028422 Rev A

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted plans.

Materials

3. The external materials shall match in colour, form and texture those of the existing building and there shall be no variation without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Landscaping/Ecology

4. The landscaping/planting scheme (as shown on drawing R/1989/1 – Landscape Details) shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved details during the first planting season after the development is substantially completed and the areas which are to be landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. Any trees, hedges or shrubs removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

REASON: In order to ensure a sympathetic relationship with the surrounding landscape in accordance with the requirements of Ribble Valley core Strategy Policies DME1 and DME2 and the NPPF.

5. No clearance of any vegetation in preparation for or during the course of development shall take place during the bird breeding season (March - August inclusive) unless an ecological survey has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the vegetation to be cleared is not utilised for bird nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no clearance of any vegetation shall take place during the bird breeding season until a methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved methodology.

REASON: To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable conservation status of birds and to protect the bird population from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of the specifications and numbers of artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting boxes to be erected. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be installed and made available for use before the extension hereby approved is first brought into use and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Amenity

7. Details of any external air conditioning vents, extraction systems or any other external plant equipment shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to installation on site. The submitted information shall include details of the design, positioning, specification, noise levels. fixing and finish of all external plant equipment and the development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area by reason of undue noise emission and/or unacceptable disturbance in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMB1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. The retailing use of the premises in accordance with this permission shall be restricted to the hours 07:00 to 22:00 hours Monday to Saturday, 10:00 to 17:00 hours on Sundays.

REASON: The use of the premises outside these hours could prove injurious to the character of the area and in order to safeguard residential amenity in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Highways

9. The existing access shall be physically and permanently closed and the existing verge/footway and kerbing of the vehicular crossing shall be reinstated in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads concurrent with the formation of the new access.

REASON: To limit the number of access points, and to maintain the proper construction of the highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

- 11. A Traffic Management Plan for the construction works, to be approved in writing by the planning department before any works begin on site and to include:-
 - The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
 - Loading and unloading of plant and materials used in the construction of the development;
 - Storage of such plant and materials;
 - The erection and maintenance of security hoardings;
 - Details of construction working hours;
 - HGV delivery times and routeing to/from the site;
 - Contact details for the site manager.

REASON: To protect existing road users in the interest of highway safety in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

12. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access has been submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. The site access shall be implemented in complete accordance with the duly approved scheme prior to the extension hereby approved first become open for trading and retained as such thereafter.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

13. The car parking spaces and manoeuvring areas shall be provided as shown on approved Drawing Number AD 110 prior to the extension hereby approved being first brought into use, and the car parking area shall be permanently maintained thereafter clear of any obstruction to its designated purpose.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Drainage

14. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref No. SR/17247/FRA dated July 2017) which was prepared by SCP. Any variation to the discharge of surface water or foul shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy, and national guidance contained within the NPPF and NPPG.

INFORMATIVE:

The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section (Area East) on 0300 123 6780, or email Inscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk. For the avoidance of doubt this work shall include the reconstruction of the former access and the formation of the new access.

(Mr Huteson spoke in favour of the above application)

6. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0714/P GRID REF: SD 372722 437376

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

EXTENSION TO EXISTING INDUSTRIAL ESTATE (CLASS B1, B2 AND B8 USE) TO INCLUDE CAR PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND SERVICE INFRASTRUCTURE AT LAND ADJACENT FORMER GENUS SITE, MITTON ROAD, WHALLEY BB7 9JY APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

4487-04-020 Proposed Site Plan [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-10B Building Type 1 (E and F) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-11B Buildings Type 2 (O and P) and Type 3 (G and S) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-12B Building Type 4 (H and L) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-13B Building Type 5 (I, M and N) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-14C Building Type 6 (K) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-15B Buildings Type 7 (Q and R) and Type 8 (T) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-16B Building Type 9 (J) [received 11/10/2017]
4487-04-17 Existing Site Plan
4487-04-18B Proposed Landscaping Layout [received 11/10/2017]

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. The external materials, including surfacing materials and their extents, of the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with those detailed on the approved plans and the 'Additional Planning Information' sheet submitted with the application. The materials shall be implemented within the development in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. No single unit of B1(c), B2 or B8 accommodation hereby approved shall have a ground floor area of more than 360m² and, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, no internal alterations involving the removal of walls between these individual units shall be carried out which would enlarge them so that any single unit has a ground floor area of more than 360m² unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To prevent a proliferation of over large units in this area and to ensure that the access provided to the site can accommodate the traffic generated by the development and in accordance with Policy DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy. 5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, no extensions or alterations, including the introduction of mezzanine floors, shall be carried out in respect of the buildings to which this permission relates.

REASON: To prevent an intensification in the use of the premises, in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of local residents within the Borough in accordance with Key Statements EC1 and EN2 and Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, during the construction period no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. No part of the development hereby granted consent shall be commenced until details of all artificial lighting has been submitted, the details of which shall include the location, intensity of lighting, type of application and direction.

The details shall include the light mitigation measures designed to reduce the impact of artificial lighting on protected species and species of conservation concern.

The external lighting shall be installed precisely in accordance with the approved details and thereby retained as such unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to reduce the harmful impact of artificial lighting on the natural foraging/roosting/nesting behaviour of a protected species and species of conservation concern and to minimise the possibility of inconvenience to nearby residents in compliance with Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Adopted Version.

8. The working hours within the premises shall be restricted to the period from 0800 to 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays only. No work shall take place in the buildings on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the adjacent properties and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

9. Prior to the first use or occupation of each unit of the development as hereby permitted, a competent person shall have ensured that the rating level of

noise emitted from the site shall not have an impact on noise-sensitive premises. The assessment shall have been made in accordance with the current version of British Standard 4142 and the Planning Practice Guidance and confirmation of the findings of the assessment shall have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and shall be adhered to thereafter.

If the assessment indicates that noise from the development is likely to affect neighbouring residential or commercial properties then a detailed scheme of noise mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the unit.

The noise mitigation measures shall be designed so that nuisance will not be caused to the occupiers of neighbouring noise sensitive premises by noise from the development.

REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area by reason of undue noise emission and/or unacceptable disturbance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. No externally sited fixed plant, machinery or equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment); or internally sited fixed plant, machinery and equipment (including ventilation and extraction equipment) which communicates directly to the exterior of a building used in connection with the development shall be fitted without first obtaining planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area due to noise from such equipment, in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. No goods, plant or materials shall be deposited or stored on the site other than in the buildings shown on the approved plans.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. There shall not at anytime whatsoever be any working outside of the buildings, or any noise generating work inside the buildings with the doors open.

REASON: In the interest of safeguarding residential amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy Proposed Main Modifications (May 2014).

13. There shall be no deliveries or collections to/from the new units hereby approved other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenity of the surrounding area and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy (Adopted Version).

14. There shall be no movements of HGV's or forklift trucks, used in connection with the new units hereby approved, within the open areas of the site other than between 07:00-19:00 Monday to Friday, between 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sunday and bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. No goods, plant or material shall be displayed for sale in the open on the site.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the site in the interests of local visual amenity and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. The biodiversity mitigation measures as detailed in the Ecological Appraisal [ref.3466] submitted with the application [Sections 7.1 – 7.8.2] shall be implemented in accordance with the recommendations and any specified time table. The development shall subsequently be implemented entirely in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the mitigation measures shall be permanently maintained and retained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To protect the protected species/ species of conservation concern from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development and to ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable status of a bat population before and during the proposed development.

17. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the artificial bird/bat nesting/roosting features as detailed on approved plan 4487-04-18B shall be incorporated into the buildings during the actual construction and before the development is first brought into use and the mitigation measures shall be permanently maintained and retained at all times thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. The approved landscaping scheme [ref.4487-04-18B] shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted. REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to comply with Policy DMG1 of the Core Strategy.

19. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution.

20. Surface water draining from areas of hardstanding shall be passed through an oil separator or series of oil separators, prior to being discharged into any watercourse, soakaway or surface water sewer. The separator(s) shall be designed and constructed to have a capacity compatible with the area being drained, shall be installed prior to the occupation of the development and shall thereafter be retained and maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. Clean roof water or vehicle washdowns and detergents shall not pass through the separator(s) and should be drained instead to foul sewer or sealed system.

REASON: To reduce the risk of pollution to the water environment in accordance with Core Strategy Policy DME6.

21. The new estate road/access between the site and Mitton Road shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level before any development takes place within the site.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

22. The existing access shall be physically and permanently closed at its junction with the internal estate road except for emergency situations. Provision shall be retained for the unobstructed passage of pedestrians and cyclists concurrent with the formation of the new access.

REASON: To limit the number of access points to, and to maintain the proper construction of the highway.

23. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site.

24. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied or opened for trading until the approved scheme referred to in Condition 23 has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme details.

REASON: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the highway scheme/works.

25. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide for:

The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors The loading and unloading of plant and materials The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development The erection and maintenance of security hoarding Details of working hours HGV delivery times and routeing to/from the site Contact details for the site manager

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

26. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

27. The parking facilities shown on the plans hereby approved shall be surfaced or paved and made available in accordance with the approved plan prior to the occupation of any of the buildings; such parking facilities shall thereafter be permanently retained for that purpose (notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015).

REASON: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure adequate parking is available within the site and to comply with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

28. Cycling facilities shall be provided in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Local Planning Authority and the cycling facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved plan before the use of the premises hereby permitted becomes operative.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas.

29. No development shall commence until final details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and

approved in writing by the local planning authority. Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change – see EA advice <u>https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessments-climatechange-allowances</u>), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of flood levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage scheme should demonstrate that surface water run-off must not exceed the existing pre-development runoff rate for the corresponding rainfall event and must not exceed 11.2 litres per second. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- c) Any works required on or off-site to ensure the adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include the refurbishment or removal of any existing watercourses, culverts, headwalls or unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing where applicable;
- f) Site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates;
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from the site; to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development, elsewhere and to future users and; to ensure that water quality is not detrimentally impacted by the development proposal.

- 30. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - a) the arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any

other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;

c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development; to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and; to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system.

INFORMATIVES

- 1. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section 0300 6780, or email on 123 Ihscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk.
- 2. This consent does not give approval to a connection being made to the County Council's highway drainage system.
- 3. For the avoidance of doubt, this planning permission does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given. The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council before starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found via the following website: www.lancashire.gov.uk/flooding.
- 7. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0763 GRID REF: SD 374444 441974

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

CHANGE OF USE OF PART OF GROUND FLOOR FROM PUBLIC HOUSE TO HOT FOOD TAKEAWAY AND ALTERATIONS INCLUDING THE CREATION OF A NEW DOOR ENTRANCE AT WHITE HORSE INN, YORK STREET, CLITHEROE

The Head of Planning Services reported on another objection received.

APPROVED subject to the imposition of the following condition(s):

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. This permission shall be implemented in accordance with the proposal as amended by letter received 10 October 2017 (painting scheme and signage) and letter and plan received on the 7 November 2017.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt since the proposal was the subject of agreed amendments.

3. The permission shall relate to the development as shown on Plan Reference 'Proposed Elevations' (but does not include 'Proposed Elevation A') and 'Proposed GA'.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted plans.

4. Notwithstanding Part 2 Deemed Consent of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007, specifications of any proposed advertisements to the York Street facade shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed works.

REASON: In order to safeguard the character and appearance of Clitheroe Conservation Area and the setting of listed buildings in the street scene.

5. The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the proposed levels of noise and odour mitigation shown within the submitted information.

REASON: To ensure that residential amenities are not significantly affected by the re-use of the former town centre public house and in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Mrs Douglas spoke in favour of the above application) (Councillor Atkinson declared an interest in the next item and left the meeting)

8. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0889/P GRID REF: SD 374637 437491

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO REAR AND EXISTING GARAGE ERECTION OF NEW TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO SIDE AND SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO REAR, PROPOSED NEW DRIVEWAY AND ENTRANCE GATE (RESUBMISSION OF 3/2016/0957 AND 3/2017/0155) AT 23 PENDLETON ROAD, WISWELL, BB7 9DD APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings 'Proposed Site Plan' Amendment A (received 25 October 2017) and Proposed Plans and Elevations Amendment A (received 25 October 2017).

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including surfacing materials and their extents and the alignment, height and appearance of all fences and walls and gates, of the development hereby permitted shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development. The materials shall be implemented within the development in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and to ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. All doors and windows shall be framed in timber and retained as such in perpetuity.

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and to ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the proposed Velux roof lights shall be of Conservation Type, recessed with a flush fitting and retained as such in perpetuity.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. All new and replacement door and window surrounds shall be stone to match existing.

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and to ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the specification indicated on the submitted drawings, all new and replacement rainwater goods, including the eaves detail, shall match those of the existing building.

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and to ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. Prior to the commencement of the development, section details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of the proposed door framing and glazing shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and to ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and Policies DMG1, DMH5, DME4 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. Before the development hereby permitted becomes occupied, the existing hedge, fence and vegetation on the highway frontage of the site to Pendleton Road shall be reduced to and be permanently maintained henceforth at a height not greater than 1m above the crown level of the carriageway of Pendleton Road

REASON: To ensure adequate visibility for the drivers of vehicles entering and leaving the site.

10. Before the access is used for vehicular purposes, that part of the access extending from the highway boundary for a minimum distance of 5m into the site shall be appropriately paved in tarmacadam, concrete, block paviours, or other approved materials.

REASON: To prevent loose surface material from being carried on to the public highway thus causing a potential source of danger to other road users.

11. The layout of the development shall include provisions to enable vehicles to enter and leave the highway in forward gear and such provisions shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan and be available for use before occupation of the extensions hereby approved.

REASON: Vehicles reversing to and from the highway are a hazard to other road users.

12. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the

recommendations of the Bat Scoping Survey Report by Batworker Consultancy that was submitted with the application.

REASON: To safeguard the favourable conservation status of the bat population in accordance with Policy DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

INFORMATIVE NOTES

- 1. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section (Area South) on 0300 123 6780, or writing to Developer Support Section, Lancashire County Council, Environment Directorate, Cuerden Mill Depot, Cuerden Way, Cuerden, PR5 6BJ or email Inscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk.
- 3. This consent does not give approval to a connection being made to the County Council's highway drainage system.

(Councillor Atkinson returned to the meeting)

9. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0920 GRID REF: SD 373069 441623

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

REVISED APPLICATION FOR FIVE TOWN-HOUSES FOLLOWING OUTLINE APPROVAL 3/2015/0312 INCLUDING GARAGE BLOCK ON ST PAULS TERRACE AT BACK ST PAULS STREET, LOW MOOR, CLITHEROE BB7 2LS

The Head of Planning Services reported upon an amendment to a drawing number and four further objections that had been received.

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun no later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

DWG 01: Housing Development Revision C (21 November 2017) DWG 02: Garages for Housing Development

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including surfacing materials including details of the glazing and windows/door framing of the development hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN5 and PolicyDMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to their installation, elevational details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of the proposed boundary treatments/fencing, walling and any retaining walls, including their location, shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall also include elevational details and a methodology for all works to existing boundary walls affected by the development. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through the site including details of the height and scale and location of the proposed housing in relation to adjacent existing development/built form (where applicable). The details shall clearly show the eaves and ridge heights of the proposed building/dwelling(s) relative to the eaves and ridge heights of existing neighbouring development/built form. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details. REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the proposal responds positively to the topography of the site and to ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. The windows in the north (front) and side (east) elevations of the development hereby approved (As indicated on DWG 01: Revision B 7th November 2017) shall be fitted with obscure glazing (which shall have an obscurity rating of not less than 4 on the Pilkington glass obscurity rating or equivalent scale) and shall be non-opening, unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed. The windows shall remain in that manner in perpetuity at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To protect nearby residential amenity and to negate the potential impacts of the development in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall indicate, as appropriate, the types and numbers of trees and shrubs, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, turfed, paved or hard landscaped, including details of any changes of level or landform and the types and specifications of all retaining structures (where applicable).

The approved soft landscaping scheme shall be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or use of the development unless agreed in writing, whether in whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than 10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. No development shall commence until details of the dedicated garaging and to which dwelling they will be assigned has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The agreed garaging (including allocation to an individual dwelling) shall be implemented and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and retained as such in perpetuity thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, the garaging for each individual dwelling shall be kept available for the parking of vehicles ancillary to the enjoyment of the household to which they are allocated and shall not be separated from their respective dwelling by way of sale or sub-letting

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate dedicated parking provision is provided on site to serve the dwellings hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. The parking areas hereby approved shall be surfaced and marked out in accordance with a scheme that shall first have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed parking scheme shall be implemented and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate dedicated parking provision is provided on site to serve the dwellings hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the revised siting for the refuse storage area, including precise details of the nature of the storage have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed refuse storage area/provision shall be constructed and made available for use prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved. The refuse storage provision shall be retained as such in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that adequate dedicated refuse storage provision is provided on site to serve the dwellings hereby approved in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. The doors serving the garaging hereby approved shall be of a roller shutter or similar construction that allows the door to remain within the confines of the envelope of the garage building when open or opening, the details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their installation. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure the safe operation of the immediate highway is maintained during the operation and use of the garaging in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird

nesting boxes / artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall take account of the recommendations contained with the submitted Bat Survey (Dated 21st may 2015) and identify the nature and type of the nesting boxes/artificial roosting sites and the locations(s) or wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into the dwellings hereby approved during the construction stage of the development and made available for use prior to first occupation and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and to minimise/mitigate the potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 13. No development shall take place within a phase (pursuant to condition 3 of this consent) until a Construction Method Statement for the relevant phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted statement shall provide details of:
 - A. The location and precise siting of parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
 - B. The location and precise siting for the loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - C. The location precise siting of storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development
 - D. The locations and precise siting of security hoarding(s)
 - E. The location and method of wheel washing facilities to prevent mud and stones/debris being carried onto the Highway and the timings/frequencies of mechanical sweeping of the adjacent roads/highway. For the avoidance of doubt such wheel washing facilities/mechanical sweeping shall remain in place/be undertaken for the full duration of the construction phase of the development
 - F. Time period schedules when plant and materials trips should not be made to and from the site (mainly peak hours but the developer to identify times when trips of this nature should not be made)
 - G. The precise details of the highway routes of plant and material deliveries to and from the site.
 - H. Details of measures to ensure that construction and delivery vehicles do not impede access to adjoining properties.
 - I. The precise days and hours of operation for all construction, site preparation and demolition works.

The methodologies and timings contained within the approved Construction Method Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction period of the development.

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. Prior to the commencement of development, the following information shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) for approval in writing:

(a) A Desk Study which assesses the risk of the potential for on-site contamination and ground gases and migration of both on and off-site contamination and ground gases.

(b) If the Desk Study identifies potential contamination and ground gases, a detailed Site Investigation shall be carried out to address the nature, degree and distribution of contamination and ground gases and shall include an identification and assessment of the risk to receptors as defined under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, focusing primarily on risks to human health and controlled waters. The investigation shall address implications of the health and safety of site workers, of nearby occupied building structures, on services and landscaping schemes and on wider environmental receptors including ecological systems and property. The sampling and analytical strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA prior to the site investigation survey.

(c) If the site investigation indicates remediation is necessary, a Remediation Statement detailing the recommendations and remedial measures to be implemented within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The remediation shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed statement and on completion of the development/remedial works, the developer shall submit a Verification Report to the LPA for approval in writing that certifies that all works were completed in accordance with the agreed Remediation Statement prior to the first occupation of the development.

REASON: To prevent pollution of ground and surface waters both on and off site and to ensure the site is suitable for its end use in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME3 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

17. The garage(s) hereby approved shall be kept available for the parking of vehicles ancillary to the enjoyment of the household(s) and shall not be used for any use that would preclude the ability for their use for the parking of private motor vehicles, whether or not permitted by the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or any order amending or revoking and re-enacting that order.

REASON: To ensure to ensure that adequate parking provision is retained on site that limits the visual impact of the parked motor-vehicle upon the street scene/area in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order, the dwellings hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted, no alterations to the roof shall be undertaken and no buildings or structures shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby approved unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the immediate area in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Councillor Rogerson declared an interest in the next item and left the meeting)

10. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0957 GRID REF: SD 370337 438256

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

CHANGE OF USE OF AGRICULTURAL LAND TO A CAMPING FACILITY INCLUDING AN AREA FOR TENTS AND THE SITING OF FIVE CAMPING PODS AND A FACILITIES BUILDING WITH ASSOCIATED VEHICULAR ACCESS TRACKS AND PEDESTRIAN TRACKS AT FOXFIELDS FARM, WHALLEY ROAD, HURST GREEN BB7 9PN

DEFERRED and DELEGATED to the Director of Community Services for appropriate conditions and Minded to Approve the development for the following reason:

REASON: There is no negative impact in the visual amenity and considered the development would be consistent with the Council's tourism objectives.

(Mr Hoerty spoke in favour of the above application. Councillor Jan Alcock was given permission to speak on the above application).

(Councillor Rogerson returned to the meeting)

11. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0962 GRID REF: SD 374154 438021

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

APPLICATION FOR OUTLINE CONSENT FOR 20 BUNGALOWS FOR THE ELDERLY (6 DETACHED TWO-BED AND 14 SEMI-DETACHED ONE-BED) AND 9 AFFORDABLE, TWO-BED APARTMENTS WITH ASSOCIATED ROADS, ANCILLARY WORKS LANDSCAPING AND ACCESS. LAND OFF SHEEPFOLD CRESCENT, BARROW BB7 9XR

REFUSED for the following reasons:

- 1. The proposal is considered contrary to Key Statements DS1, DS2 and Policies DMG2 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy in that the approval would lead to the creation of a new residential dwellings in the defined open countryside, located outside of a defined settlement boundary, without sufficient or adequate justification which would cause harm to the development strategy for the borough.
- 2 The proposal is consider to be contrary to Key Statement DS1 and DS2 and Policy DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy in that the proposal would contribute to a level of development that already significantly exceeds the anticipated level of housing development embodied within the Ribble Valley Core Strategy in terms of the planned residual need for the settlement of Barrow. It is further considered that the level of over-supply of housing, as a result of the proposed development would undermine the Development Strategy for the Borough which seeks to critically establish both the pattern and intended scale of development in relation to housing numbers in order to achieve a sustainable pattern of development across the Borough for the duration of the plan period.

(Mr Sumner spoke in favour of the above application)

12. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0433 GRID REF: SD 373290 440609

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

APPLICATION FOR OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR UP TO 24 NEW DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE ON LAND BEHIND 115 KEMPLE VIEW, CLITHEROE INCLUDING ACCESS VIA HENTHORN ROAD. LAND OFF HENTHORN ROAD, CLITHEROE BB7 2QF.

DEFERRED and DELEGATED to the Director of Community Services for approval following the satisfactory completion of a Legal Agreement, within 3 months from the date of this Committee meeting or delegated to the Director of Community Services in conjunction with the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of Planning and Development Committee should exceptional circumstances exist beyond the period of 3 months and subject to the following conditions:

1. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced on any part of the development hereby approved until full details of the layout, scale and appearance of the buildings and landscaping within that phase (hereinafter called 'the reserved matters') have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

In relation to landscaping, the details for each phase (where relevant) shall include: the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, turfed, paved or hard landscaped, including details of any changes of level or landform, full specifications of all boundary treatments and a scheme of maintenance, including long term design objectives.

The submitted landscape details shall take full account of the Landscape Strategy Plan (Job 2741 Dwg No: 201 Rev: F) and the mitigation and enhancement measures as contained within the submitted Phase 1 Habitat Survey (March 2017) and subsequent Ecological Addendum (Dated 12th November 2017).

REASON: As the application is outline only and to define the scope of the reserved matters in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

2. No more than 24 dwellings shall be developed within the application site edged red on the submitted Location Plan (Drawing 17/08/L01 Revision B)

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify the scope of the permission in accordance with keys Statement DS1 and Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

3. Application(s) for approval of all of the outstanding reserved matters related to the consent hereby approved must be made not later than the expiration of

three years beginning with the date of this permission and the development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following dates.

- (a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or
- (b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

- 4. The details in respect of the submission of any subsequent reserved matters shall be in strict accordance with the design principles, parameters and landscape strategy as set out in the following approved documentation:
 - Landscape Strategy Plan: Drawing 201 Revision F
 - Indicative Proposed Site Plan: Drawing 17/018/P01 Revision A
 - Indicative Proposed Street Scene: Drawing 17/018/P02 Revision A
 - Design & Access Statement (Revised October 2017)

REASON: To ensure the development accords with the agreed general principles in relation to design, green infrastructure and pedestrian and vehicular movement within the site in accordance with Policies DMG1, DMG3, DME1, DME2 DME3, DMI2, DMB4, DMB5 and Key Statements EN3 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the height of any of the dwellings proposed in any subsequent reserved matters application(s) shall not exceed two storeys in height.

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities and character of the area and to ensure that the proposed development remains compatible with the landscape character of the area and responds appropriately to the topography of the site so as to minimise undue visual impact in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

 Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) including the levels of the proposed roads.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through the site including details of the height, scale and location of proposed housing in relation to adjacent existing development/built form (where applicable). The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development, its visual compatibility with the defined open countryside, in the interests of visual and

residential amenities and to ensure the Local planning Authority can make an accurate assessment of the potential impacts upon existing nearby residential amenity in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. As part of any subsequent reserved matters application relating to layout and prior to the commencement of any development, precise specifications and details of the proposed pedestrian routes/footways interface with the adjacent Public Right of Way (Footpath 17), including a scheme for the improvement of the portion of the aforementioned existing Right of Way that is within the red edge of the application site (where applicable), shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in partnership with Lancashire County Council. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities and character of the area and to ensure that the proposed development interfaces with the adjacent Public Right of Way in a manner that will not compromise its safe operation and to secure enhancement of the existing footpath route in accordance with Policies DMG1, DMG2 and DMB5 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy)

8. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of the proposed surface water attenuation pond(s) on site.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through each pond including relevant existing and proposed land levels and details of all associated landscaping and boundary treatments where applicable. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of visual and residential amenities and to ensure the Local planning Authority can make an accurate assessment of the details relating to matters of flood risk and sustainable drainage in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policies DMG1 and Dme6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly. The development shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 11. The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 3886/FRA/Final/v1.0/2017-07-27 and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
 - All development to be located in Flood Zone 1.
 - Finished floor levels are set no lower than 0.15 m above existing ground level.
 - An 8 m undeveloped buffer strip will be provided from the top of bank of Pendleton Brook. No development, such as new dwellings, private gardens and fences, will be located within this 8 m easement.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. As part of any subsequent reserved matters application relating to layout and prior to the commencement of any development, the following details shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Surface water drainage scheme which as a minimum shall include:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change – see EA advicehttps://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessments-climatechange-allowances), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of flood levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage scheme should demonstrate that surface water run-off must not exceed the existing pre-development greenfield runoff rate for the corresponding rainfall event. The scheme shall subsequently be

implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

- c) Any works required on or off-site to ensure the adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include the refurbishment or removal of any existing watercourses, culverts, headwalls or unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing where applicable;
- f) Site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates;
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

REASON: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from the site, to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development, elsewhere and to future users and to ensure that water quality is not detrimentally impacted by the development proposal in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 13. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - a) the arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - ii. operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
 - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development, to reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system.

14. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site unless and until a scheme for protective fencing for trees within and adjacent to the site, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Such fencing shall be in accordance with BS5837 (2012): 'Trees in Relation to Construction'. Such fencing shall be erected in its entirety prior to any other operations taking place on the site. This fencing should not be breached or removed during development. Furthermore within the areas so fenced the existing ground level shall be neither raised nor lowered and there shall be no development or development-related activity of any description including the deposit of spoil or the storage of materials unless expressly agreed by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To protect trees/hedging of landscape and visual amenity value on and adjacent to the site or those likely to be affected by the proposed development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the proposes enhancement and/or mitigation measures contained within the submitted Phase 1 Habitat Survey (March 2017) and subsequent Ecological Addendum (Dated 12th November 2017) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the mitigation shall include, but not be limited to the provision for bat and bird boxes (building and pole-mounted), Barn Owl Boxes (Tree Mounted), wildflower grassland and scrub-planting.

The submitted details shall include the timing and phasing for the creation/installation of enhancement/mitigation measures and a scheme for their future management and maintenance. The submitted details shall further indicate the precise location, siting and nature of all bat/bird/owl box provision.

The agreed artificial bird/bat boxes to be building mounted shall be incorporated into their respective individual dwellings during the construction of those dwellings and be made available for use before each such dwelling is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details including the timings and methodology for all installation.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and to reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME3 and Key Statement EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by elevational and locational details including the height and appearance of all boundary treatments, fencing, walling, retaining wall structures and gates to be erected within the development.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall include the precise nature and location for the provision of measures to maintain and enhance wildlife movement within and around the site by virtue of the inclusion of suitable sized gaps/corridors at ground level. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To comply with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy, to ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to minimise the potential impacts of the development through the inclusion of measures to retain and enhance habitat connectivity for species of importance or conservation concern.

17. Applications for the approval of reserved matters, where relevant, shall be accompanied by full details of all proposed usable public open space and associated street furnishings/play equipment.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall include the specification and nature of all proposed surfacing, street furniture, informal/formal play equipment and details of existing and proposed land levels and all associated landscaping and boundary treatments (where applicable). The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and allows for the provision of an acceptable and adequate form of usable public open space in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMB4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation or demolition shall commence or be undertaken on site until the new estate road/access point between the proposal site and the adjacent land to the north shall have been constructed in accordance with the

Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative and to ensure the safe operation of the highway during the construction phase of the development in accordance with Key Statement DMI2 and Policy DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until full engineering, drainage, street lighting and constructional details of the streets proposed for adoption by the Highway Authority have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interest of highway safety; to ensure a satisfactory appearance to the highways infrastructure serving the approved development; and to safeguard the visual amenities of the locality and users of the highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

20. The submission of reserved matters in respect of layout shall include details of the phasing and timings for the delivery/installation/construction of the proposed footpaths/pedestrian routes (formal and informal), public open space provision, landscaping and attenuation pond shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that adequate usable public open space/recreational areas are delivered on an appropriately phased basis to ensure that adequate provision is provided to serve the occupants of the development in accordance with Policies DMG1, DMB4 and DMB5 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 21. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement for the relevant phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. For the avoidance of doubt the submitted statement shall provide details of:
 - A. The location of parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
 - B. The location for the loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - C. The location of storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
 - D. The locations of security hoarding
 - E. The location and nature of wheel washing facilities to prevent mud and stones/debris being carried onto the Highway (For the avoidance of doubt such facilities shall remain in place for the duration of the construction

phase of the development) and the timings/frequencies of mechanical sweeping of the adjacent roads/highway

- F. Periods when plant and materials trips should not be made to and from the site (mainly peak hours but the developer to identify times when trips of this nature should not be made)
- G. The highway routes of plant and material deliveries to and from the site.
- H. Measures to ensure that construction and delivery vehicles do not impede access to adjoining properties.
- Days and hours of operation for all construction works. Ι.

The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period of the development.

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Ms Thompson spoke in favour of the above application. Mrs Fenton spoke against the above application).

SECTION 106 APPLICATIONS 455

<u>Plan No</u>	Location	Date to	<u>Number</u>	Progress
		<u>Committee</u>	<u>of</u>	
			<u>Dwellings</u>	
3/2017/0133	Land off Dale View	31/8/17	41	With Legal,
	Billington			Housing &
	-			Planning
3/2017/0573	Land off Union Street	26/10/17	36	With Legal &
	Clitheroe			LCC
3/2017/0616	Former Clitheroe	26/10/17	60	With Legal &
	Hospital			LCC
	Chatburn Road			
	Clitheroe			

456 APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN

<u>Plan No</u>	Proposal	Location
3/2017/0742	Demolish existing farmhouse and	
	rebuild. Change of use of agricultural	Longridge Road
	barn to two dwellings. Change of use of	Chipping
	mono-pitch farm building to a garage for	
	the barn conversion. Demolish four	
	farm buildings. Dismantle and rebuild	
	one timber framed agricultural building	
	in new location on the site. Reorientation of one steel framed	
	agricultural building	
3/2017/0772	Erection of one new dwelling in garden of 20 Abbey Fields including new	-

vehicular access

3/2017/0901	Four dingle storey (two bedroom) holiday units with associated access and car parking	-
3/2017/0987	Provision of additional hand-railing to a section of footpath leading from the church grounds down towards Church Close	Church Street
3/2017/0939	Two new semi-detached two storey dwellings	Land adjacent to 5 Beech Close Clitheroe

457 APPEALS UPDATE

Application No and reason for appeal	<u>Date</u> <u>Received/</u> <u>Appeal</u> Start Date	Site Address	<u>Type of</u> <u>Appeal</u> Procedure	<u>Date of</u> Inquiry/Hearing if applicable	<u>Progress</u>
3/2015/0393 R	10/08/16	Land west of Preston Road Longridge (Grimbaldeston Farm)	Inquiry		Appeal Withdrawn 2/11/17
3/2017/0088 R	03/07/17	1 and 2 Abbeycroft The Sands Whalley	WR		Appeal Dismissed 3/11/17
3/2017/0039 R	07/08/17	18 Netherwood Gardens Brockhall Langho	HH		Appeal Dismissed 25/10/17
3/2016/1196 R	03/07/17	Lower Standen Farm, Whalley Road, Pendleton	WR		Appeal Dismissed 25/10/17
3/2017/0029 R	24/07/17	Field at Hellifield Road, Gisburn	WR to be changed to Hearing by PINS – no date set yet		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0045 R LDC	30/10/17	Newton Hall Newton in Bowland	WR		Appeal Withdrawn 13/11/17
3/2016/1202 R	17/08/17	Barn within the grounds of Greengore Farm	WR		Appeal Dismissed 9/11/17
3/2017/0192 R	19/07/17	Countess Hey Elmridge Lane Chipping	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0308 R	10/08/17	Fields Farm Barn Back Lane Chipping	HH		Appeal Allowed 02/11/17

Application No and reason for appeal	<u>Date</u> <u>Received/</u> <u>Appeal</u> Start Date	<u>Site Address</u>	<u>Type of</u> <u>Appeal</u> Procedure	<u>Date of</u> Inquiry/Hearing if applicable	<u>Progress</u>
3/2017/0220 R	07/08/17	2a Whittingham Road, Longridge	WR		Awaiting Decision
Enforcement	Awaiting start date from PINS	Demesne Farm Newsholme Gisburn	Hearing (to be confirmed)		Decision
3/2017/0441 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	19 Woodfield View Whalley	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2016/0999 R	24/10/17	Land at Dale View, Billington	WR		Statement due 28/11/17
3/2016/0980 R	24/10/17	Land off Dale View, Billington	WR		Statement due 28/11/17
3/2016/1192 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Hammond Ground Whalley Road Read	Inquiry (to be confirmed)		
3/3016/1082 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	74 Higher Road Longridge and land to the rear	WR (to be confirmed)		

458 BOLTON-BY-BOWLAND AND GISBURN FOREST NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN – UPDATE

The Chief Executive submitted a report giving an update on the Bolton by Bowland and Gisburn Forest Neighbourhood Plan. The draft plan was the subject of public engagement and consultation in accord with the applicable regulations and a revised plan had been submitted to the Ribble Valley Borough Council. Members had considered the submitted plan and agreed to appoint an Independent Examiner to carry out the Examination of the plan. The Examiner found that the plan could move to Referendum subject to certain changes to the plan to make the plan sound. The Parish Council had held an extraordinary meeting at which they had resolved to withdraw the Neighbourhood Plan due to the plan being considered to differ too greatly from the submission plan. A withdrawal notice has subsequently been received by the Council.

RESOLVED: That Committee note the recommendations of the Examiner but in the light of the Parish council resolution to withdraw the plan, agree that no further action is taken on the Bolton by Bowland and Gisburn Forest Neighbourhood Plan.

459 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 3/19/3/206 ST MARY'S CENTRE, CLITHEROE

The Director of Community Services submitted a report asking Committee to consider objections to the St Mary's Centre Tree Preservation Order and decide whether the order should be confirmed. Following the submission of an application to fell the tree under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 on 15 June 2017 which was refused on 19 July 2017, a tree

preservation order was served on 20 July. Objections to the preservation order have been made. The tree is considered to be of visual amenity value to the locality and to the wider tree scape and therefore in the interests of amenity, it was considered expedient to protect the tree growing on land included in a Conservation Area. The applicant has claimed that the boundary wall fronting York Street is being undermined by the tree and is in a dangerous condition. This has not been substantiated by any definitive evidence.

Members considered the situation with the tree in question with particular regard to the safety issues involved. It was brought to Members' attention that having a tree preservation order on this tree does not preclude a planning application being submitted or determined and in instances where a planning permission is granted and where the details indicate which trees are to be removed as part of the detailed consent, the planning permission supersedes a tree preservation order and the loss can be mitigated.

- RESOLVED: That Committee defer confirming the tree preservation order at St Mary's Centre, Clitheroe until the next meeting of Committee subject to receipt of a detailed report regarding condition of the boundary wall on York Street, Clitheroe.
- 460 RIBBLE VALLEY BROWN FIELD LAND REGISTER

The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee regarding the government requirement for all local authorities to produce a public Brownfield Land Register of sites capable of being developed for housing and that may potentially be subsequently be given a permission in principle to be developed for future housing and to describe the register's detailed structure.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 461 HOUSING LAND AVAILABILITY

The Chief Executive submitted a report providing Members with key information on the results of the most recent Housing Land Availability Survey October 2017 which has a base date of 30 September 2017.

- RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
- 462 MINOR CHANGES TO THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROTOCOL

The Director of Community Services submitted a report advising Members of minor changes to the Development Management Protocol in relation to the section on pre-application advice. The section had been altered to emphasise the importance and benefits to developers of the importance of pre-application advice and that officers will not normally engage in significant discussion during the application process when the pre-application service has not been used.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

463 APPEALS

- a) 3/2017/0039 amendments made to front and rear first floor balcony areas following approval of planning permission at 18 Netherwood Gardens, Brockhall Village, Old Langho – appeal dismissed,
- b) 3/2016/1196 erection of 5 dwellings and associated works at Lower Standen Hey Farm, Whalley Road, Clitheroe appeal dismissed.
- c) 3/2017/0308 formation of new window opening in existing dwelling at Fields Farm Barn, Back Lane, Chipping appeal allowed.
- d) 3/2017/0088 demolition of an external toilet block to be replaced with a single storey extension to both 1 and 2 Abbeycroft, The Sands, Whalley – appeal dismissed.
- e) 3/2016/1202 renovation and conversion of an existing barn within the curtilage of a listed property, into a residential property. Replacement of a dilapidated lean-to garage with a new garage more in-keeping with the barn at Greengore Farm, Hurst Green, BB7 9QT appeal dismissed.

464 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES

There were no reports from Representatives on Outside Bodies.

The meeting closed at 8.34pm.

If you have any queries on these minutes please contact John Heap (414461).